UNITED NATIONS =
K Distr.
. GENERAL
GE N ERAL | MA/AC.96/SR.34§
™ T 19 October 1982
ASSEMBLY ENGLISH

Original: FRENCH

'EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE HIGH COMMISSIONER'S PROGRAMME
Thirty=-third session

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 348th MEETING

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva;
on Thursday, 14 October 1982, at 3 p.m.

~ Chairman: o Mr. Kharma : (Lebanon)
V later: Mr. Ewerlsf : . (Sweden)
CONTENTS

UNHCR assistance activities

) Consideratipn of draft decision on the general debate

.This record is subject to correction.

'Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages. They should
be set forth in a memorandum’ and also incorporated in a copy of the record.- They
should be sent within one week of the date of this document to the Chief,

Official Records Editing Section, room E-6108, Palais des Nations. Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of thefmeetings of the Executive Committec at
this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly after
the end of the session.

GE.82-05492



A/AC 96/SR 248
page 2.

“The meeting was called to order at 3.35 p.m.

UNHCR AS“ISTANCE ACTIVITIES (agenda item 6). (A/AC.96/606 and 607, A/36/12/Add.%,
EC/SC278) " o o 190/ ~chACE S

1. Mgy ZOLLNER - (Director of Assistance), introducing the discussion on assistance
programmes, remindsd--members-that at previous sessions he had already dealt with

a nunber of matters relating to assistance activities, such as destermination of the
number of refugees, betier balance in acsistance to various groups of refugees
throughout the world, and the pricrity to be accorded to durable solutions rather
than to indefinite assistance. AL the current sessicn he would deal more
specifically with the question of. the implemeritation of assistance programmzs and
projects, referring to the problems encountered and rev1ew1n9 the neasures taken

or envisagzd with a view to .improving implementation. :

2. With regard to the probleas encountered, he said that the extr-mely rapid
growtin in UNHCR assistance programmes throughout the world had often outstripped tha
capacity of UNHCR to ensure effective implementatiocan; the methodes of the 19705 had
often proved inedequate to meet the challenpes of the 1980s. Ir the new programmcs
it had often been necessary to aim at speed and to be content with. outline planning.
As a resuit programmzs had nct always fully met the needs of individual gFoups while
a2t the came iime, becaure of their cizd, they had {ested the administrative and
menagement. capasities of the governwental and non-goveramental bodies reuponsikle
for implemcntation aud irposed a hburden on the systems and procedures of UNHCR
itself. Ia many cases it nad not bean possible o make full use of the fundg
approved for a financial year in the course of that year. Limited absorpticn
capacities, which had somatimes made it necessary to delay the iriplementation of
projezis for several years, had also been encountered. As earlier planning mcdels
could nu lenger meet nev needs, the.serviees of technical consultants had been used
with a view to minimizing the risks of unsuitable planning. During that psriocd of
repid growth, a larwe nuisber of staff had also had to be recruited, go rapidly that
it had not baanpoosible Un provide “nem with adequate training or, owing fto lack of
resourcasg, o anUu nt them thorougnly with UNHCR procedures and methods of project
planning and monitoring. OSimelines; implementation had had to be entrusted to new
AmDJAW nting agencies wheze shaff c1b0 had often had limited training, and the
eailts had nct always baen very sgatlsfactory. Nor had they always been sgatisfacto
winen traditional operaticnral partners had been requested to deal witih new geographlcaL
regionz cr new areas of assictasca. IU was clear that the range of implementing
agannies o~ UNHOR projeets sionid be extendad and the qualicy of the directivas
given to those azencies improved. That situation hed beea given the
High Ceommicsioner's cl 3¢ avtention and, wizh his support, was being improved.
MemQ@ms“ views in.the matber would-ba-extremely valuable,

7. An irportant stop tewards foproved ipplementation had been'*the ectablichment of
a projent managenment systen "MS) wnich had been_used for the first tims :in-the
1979-1980 progr remiaing cyele.  fina pysu\w made for better evaluation of:project
proposa.s; and bettecr plun"ng, fOLlOWmUp and monitoring of g”ogeots.f'It ‘had -

now proved it elf and ite Tinal 2lamons;- evaluabloﬂ had been introduced in 1980.




A/AC.96/SR.348
page 3

4. In the area of internal consideration of the implementation of projects, the
Division of Assistance Programmes and the four regional offices had already carried
out a detailed examination of current implementation. rates. UNHCR delegations in the
field and the responsible officers at headquarters were reviewing the implementation
of each project. A number of measures for improving implementation were available:
UNHCR could strengthen the capacity of operational partners by assuming responsibility
for the financing of certain implementing agency posts in such fields as accountancy
and the monitoring and follow-up of operations; it could second administrators or
experts to government sarvices o assist in the planning and execution of programmes;
it could supplement the training of the staff of implementing agencies by means of
technical or management seminars; the use of experts from the United Wations system
was .21s0 envisaged, sometimas for the purpose of providing technical support for
impleamentation; and, in some cases, UNHCR officers were sent to the field as
consultants and to follow up projects. The High Commissioner expected to complete
his internal evaluation of implementation before the end of 1932 and to incorporate
the results in the arrangements sdopted for the e:recution of the programme for 1983.

5. :On the subject of planning, he noted th:t a detailed submission had to be prepared
for each .project that was the subject of a request for funds. Planning was based
mainly on an estimate of needs by UNHCR delegations in the field. Submissions were
reviewed at headquarters and a final recommendation was then made to the

Executive Committee in order to obtain the necessary funds. In many cases, the ne=ds
would warrant a request for more funds but the methods or conditions of implementation
were deemed inadequate; such assessment of absorption capacities had played a
significant role in 1982 in the consideration of proposals from delegations in the
field. It would be noted that, for the first time,  the total sum recommended for the
revised general programmes for 1982 was lower than the total approved in the previous
vear. That was largely the reflection of a stricter assessment of implementation
capacities and a concern to ensure that funds were used effectively. 1If, however, the
implementation was more rapid than planned, the reserve funds of the Programme could
be drawn upon.

6. The establishment of new structures had also been of benefit in the co-ordination
of implementation: a Programme Management Bureau had been set up, within which there
was a Technical Support Group that would allow for far better identification and use
of implementing agencies and technical experts in the planning and execution of
programmes. The Technical Support Group was to be strengthened by a health and
nutrition specialist seconded - it was hoped - from WHO, a building specialist
seconded from Habitat, and a water and sanitation expert recruited directly by UNHCR.
In addition, the reorganization of the former Counselling and Education Section, now
known as the Social Services Section, meant that more effective social welfare
services would be available to refugees.

7.  Although the PMS involved tighter plenning, that planning still often had to be
simply outlined and confined mainly to the provision of essential objects which the
refugees required in order to survive. It still happened that insufficient attention
was given to special and vulnerable groups such as the handicapped, women and children,
and the elderly. Fortunately, the recruitment of staff with special responsibility
for those groups and the activities of the Social Services Section had enabled those
deficiencies to be remedied to some extent. A drawback of the broad planning it had
been necessary to adopt was that it led to the financial needs of some programmes

being over-egtimated or uwnder-estimated but with the introduction of the PMS and the
increase in its technical rescurces UNHCR was now able to determine costs and personnel
needs in an efficient and economic manner.



A/AC.96/SR. 348
page 4

8. There were too few technical experts attached to UNHCR to resolve all the
problems but, in co-operation with the regional offices, théy could identify cases
where out31de technical support would contribute to a solution, and they could also
evaluate the technical recommendations made by outside consultants. In addition, the
incorporation of the project evaluation component in the management system had led

to better identification of the problems that arose within the framework of programmes
and enabled lessong to be learned for similar activities in the future. On the
conclusion of each project, the implementing agency was requested to submit a
self-evaluation report. Those reports were reviewed by delegations in the field and
were thén forwarded to Geneva with comments and recommendations. Every year certain
projects were: the subject of a more detailed mid-term evaluation, if nocessary'w1th the
assistance of technical experts who made up evaluation teams. A summary of mid-term
evaluations already carried out appeared in document EC/SC2/8 which had been
submltted to the Sub- Commlttee on Administrative and Financial Matters.

9. The new’ admlnlstrators, who had had to be recruited in large numbers, had often
been handicapped by lack of training and of manuals. The Office of the Director

of ‘Assistance Programmes had solved the problem in part by holding periodic training
courses for staff responsiblée for assistance projects. Since 1979 several seminars
had been organized in that connection in the fi=ld and at headquarters, in
subsequent years, their number and duration had increased and their content had been
improved. The Division had also organized more technical seminars on the plannlng
and -implementation of integrated social serv1ces, the planning of rural settlement
centres, and certain aspects of resettlement. For the first time, in 1982, the staff
of implementing agencies had taken part in some of those courses. The results of
that training had been good and it was to be extended in 1983. ‘

10. The activities which He had described were activities over which UNHCR had
almost complete control. However, with a view to ensuring effective 1mp1ementation.
the Programme Division was also going to study ways of increasing the options open to
Governments. The Liaison Unit for Non-Govemmental Organizations would facilitate
identification of new operational partners and co-ordination of the evaluation of thelr
capacities and special areas of competence. The Liaison Unit would also be
responsible for compiling experience and information from the past on co-operation
between the implementing agencies and UNHCR. The Technical Support Group was
simultaneously endeavouring to 1dent1fy firms that could provide consultants or even
assume responsibility, in whole or in part, for project execution. Efforts in the
sphere of inter-institutional co-ordination had also been intensified particularly

in the context of pilot projects designed to involve agencies of the United Nations
system in neéw spheres of activity. He pointed out in that connection that in
collaborating with implementing agenciés UNHCR continued to be the primary source of
financing. Implementing agencies participated in project execution, but wuch effort
and co-ordination would be required if they were also to participate in the financing
of projects. One of ‘the 31gn1flcant exceptions was the long tradltlon of co—operatlon
betwenn UNHCR and WFP '

*11. Referring to UNHCR policies regarding the choice of implementatioﬁ methods, he

said that at the request of a Government the Office of the High Commissioner of ten
played an operational role, particularly during the initial phase of an emergency
programme. It was during that initial phase that most implementing agencies were
associated with projects financed by UNHCR but sometimes the vo]untaryagen01eswere

, sma]l and thelr powers llmlted ‘and even United Nations specialized agenc1es usually



A/AC.96/SR.348
page 5

had sectoral competence. In emergency situations, UNHCR solved the problem which
such. regtrictions imposed: by playing a co-ordinating. and advisory 'role. -However,
after the emergency phase, its task was rather to identify an organization capable

of assuming full responsibility for a multi-sectoral programme particularly in regard
to co-ordination and guidance at which stage it confined its own role to following

up implementation., Unfortunately, few implementing agencies had such a capacity

for multisectoral co-ordination; UNHCR then asked smaller implementing agencies %o
co-operate with others which ensured general co-ordination, or it teok the measures
to which he had already referred with a view to improving the management capacity of-
a particular implementing agency. Sometimes, it had to continue to perform the task
of direct co-ordination but that required more staff and involved higher administrative
costs. UNHCR therefore attached great importance to  the identificaiion of agencies
that could ensure the co-ordination of all aspects of a multi-secioral programme.

12, Jastly, a detalled account of ass;stance sotivitiag by reglon .and. by country
appeared in the report on UNHOR assistance z-tivities in 1981-1982 (A/AC.96/606). That
report took account of the comments and suggestlons made at the previous session and
most delegations, bhoth at the Sub-Committee on Administrstive and Financial Matters‘
and in plenary, had already decided that it was an improvement.

13. The CHAIRMAN thanked the Dlrector for A081stance and invited comments on the
report on UNHCR assistance. g(ile tigs in 1981-1982.

14,  WMr. CORNELL (Sweden) Sald he welcomed UWHCR'S efforts $0 strengthen 1ts
activities away from headquarters and to delegate more authority to the field.
Although it was not an operatlonal agency like UNICEF, UNHCR should be present in the
field and actively involved in a331stance operatlone so as to co-ordinate and monltor
activities effectively.

15. His delegation noted w1th satisfaction that in many programmes UNHCR had placed
the emphasis not on emergency measures but on promoting the self- sufflclency of .
refuge\s.. It should however, remain ready to respond to new emérgency s1tuatlons ,
by organlzlng ass1stance activities in accordance with the principles set forth in
the handbook on emergency aot1v1t1es, whose constructlve and problemrorlentea splrlt
should also under11e the reports submitted to the EX@CUulVe Commlttee. ' )
16. In general the flow of information from UNHCR had greatly 1mproved and
assistance documents now contalned a wealth of 1nformatlon, facts and figures for
each programme which it was essential for donors to know. I% would, however, be’
advisable for UVHCR to publish 1nformatlon of ‘a ‘more analytlcal nature on specific
problems which it faced in the fisld and in particular on those referréd to by the
High Commissioner in his opening statement., It would also be useful for donors to
be familiar with the arrangements between the UNHCR and the 1mp1ement1ng partners,
their respon51b111t1es and functions and the extent to which their knowledge and
experience could be eppllcd elsewhere. Despite the problems involved in making
precise estimates of a refugee population, assistance documents should indicate the'
number of beneficiarie$ more clearly in each case since, w1thout even an 1ndloat1ve
figure, the programme would be dlfflcult to eveluate. :

17. His delegation noted with' satisfaction the introduction of a:sytematic project
evaluation system and hoped that it would be expanded. In order toavoid duplication
with the evaluation activities of donor countries, it would beruseful if full -
evaluation reports on programmes could be made available to those countries and 'if
they could be invited, from time to time, to participate in evalustion missions.



A/AC.96/SR.348
page 6

18. Swedenrealized that UNHCR faced difficulties -in many Central American countries
and would therefore like to. see a strengthening of its presence in that region so
that it could vigorously pursué its policy for protection of and assistance to-
refugees and continue to seek durable solutions as it had done in Nicaragua,

Costa Rica and Panama. The Swedish Emergency Unit, for its part, was currently
providing UNHCR with technical assistance in the implementation of a road project’
in the eastern part of Honduras which ‘would facilitate the delivery of supplles

to Misklto Indians who were refugees from Nicaragua. o

19, ' His delegation appreciated the steps taken by the UNHCR in the Horn of Afrlca
to facilitate voluntary repatriation. It had hoped that the programme for
returnees to Ethiopia would be more advanced but the situation was perhaps more
complex than was apparent from the report. B8 regional approach seemed indicated

in that case but real progress might have to await political solutions. In the
meantime, the UNHCR and the voluntary agencies, such as the League of Red Cross
Societies and the Lutheran World Federation, might gather useful experience on how
an effective repatriation programme could be organized.

20. According to a study on the matter carried out by the Swedish mission, the
Afghan refugee programme in Pakistan was being well run thanks to the combined
efforts of the Pakistan Government, UNHCR and non-governmental organizations. That
programme illustrated the importance of educational activities as an integral part
of assistance. Of half a million children in Afghan refugee camps, only 50,000.
received some form of education. It would be desirable to devote more resources
to those programmes, particularly in camps where refugees stayed for a long time,
since education afforded the best means of preparing children for the future
irrespective of the durable solution adopted.

21. L large part of the refugees who had arrived in Sweden in recent years came
from non-European countries where the culture, language and way of life were very
differsnt from those in the receiving country. Many lacked the education and skills
required for employment in the industrialized countries. To prevent such refugees
from bscoming second-class citizens, many receiving countries now offered language
courset and vocational training suited to their special needs. Furthermore,
interpreters should be trained so that refugees could be assisted in their own
languag: during the initial period of integration and efforts should also be made
to trair children in their mother-tongue. It should be borne irn mind that refugees
might ors day be able to return to their countries of origin and that they should
be prepated to contribute to development of these countries. In order to overcome
the diff.oulties encountered in teaching languages spoken by very few people -
including Yhe recruitment of competent teachers - programmes .of that kind could
concentraze on a few ethnic groups of refugees: that would enable the receiving
country tc make more efficient use of its resources by benefiting a larger number
of refugee; belonging to such groups. UNHCR should assume part of the responsibility
in that ara and it might be useful for interested countries to discuss the subject,
The Interna-ional Refugee Integration Resource Centre should help to collect and .
disseminate seful information in that connection. It would, of course, only be
possible to joncentrate resources in that way if resettlement was carried out
dccording to z plan. Naturally, there was no guestion of running the risk of being
less prepared %o respond to emergency cases but, if more countries provided

. resettlement cpoortunities, UNHCR might have enough flexibility to consider the
question of cowsentration of resources even in such emergencies.



A/AC.95/SR.348
page 7

22. Mr. Ewerlsf (Vice-Chairman) fook'.the Chair.

23. Mr. KAAKUNGL {South West Afvica Peopla'~ Organization ~ SWAPQ) said that the
future of the Namibian refugees was bleak, given the gloomy prospects for.succes

of the United Nations "Plan for Namibia (Securlty Council resolution 445 (1978° )
even ir token progress had been made in th2 negotiationz for its immediate
implementation. That was because the South African racist regime had decided,

with the active encouragement of the présent administration of the United States, -
to link the question of the independence of Namibia to the entirely separate issue
of the prasence of Cuban troops in Angola. The United States had in fact used -
that pretext to encourage the’ fascist regime of South Africa to maintain its illegal
occupation of Namibia and continue w1th_its’repression in defiance of international
public opinion. In that connéctidn; he wished to reizerate that the righ: to
independence was an inviolable right. It was completely unacceptable for the
process of independence to bz delayed in such a manner, and SWAPO trusted that the’
remaining members of the Contact Group -~ the United Klngdom the Federal Republic
of Germany and Canada ~ would do everything rossible to dissuade the United States
from prolonging the suffering of the Namibians. ’

24. The armed forces of the racist regime of Pretoria were torturing and murdering
an increasing number of innocent Namibian people with complete impunity. In the
north of the country, in particular, fhey resorted to looting. destroyed crops and
magsacrad livestock S0 as to intimidate the people and force them to. accept an
allegedly “more repreaentative' puppet admlnlstration. The aim of that regime and
its allies -was to create a politlconmllitary force as an alternative to SWAPO.

But it had to be realized that they would never reduce SWAPO's prestige in the
eyes of the Namibian people and that their latest maneouires, like the earlier
ones, were doomed to failure. He urged all Governments and all democratic
orgaﬁizations throughout the world to denounce Pretoria’s latest attempt to set up
a Bantustan reglme *n Namibia.

25. - The number of Namioian refugees under SWAPD care in Angola and Zambia now '
stood at 70,000. The majority of them were to e found in the Namibian Health arnd
Zducation Centres, in the Xwanza Sul »rovince of Angola, which the Government of
Anzola had made availabla tc SWAPO in 1969 after Sruth Africats fascist army hau
brutaliy killad thousands of unarmed peoplz in Cassinga (Angola). Living conditions
in those centres wera cxtremely difficult and UNHCR's assistancte {211 far short of
meeting their needs, particularly in terms of shelter and transport. He trusted
that UNHCR would iricrease its assistance and would participate in the project for
the construction of a Namibian secondarv tachnical school at Loudima (People’s
Republic of Congo). In that connection he asked the Chairman whether it would be
possible to organize an informal meeting of possible donors during the session.

In addition, SWAPO would need farm implements so that the refugees could cultivate
the land which the Angolan Govarnment had made available Lo them and it appealed

to the generosity of UNHCR and other charitable organizations. It had also
requested UNHCR for assistance in the construction of a poultry farm and hoped that
that project would be approved.

26. lastly, hz expressed SWAPO's solidarity with the PLO and the Palestinian
people, with its comrades in arms in South Africa who were fighting under the
leadership of the African National Congress, and with all peoples fighting for
their freedon,



A/AC.96/SR. 348
page 8

27. Mrs. KSENTINI (Algeria) said she trusted that, as a result of UNHCR efforts to
overcome the difficulties referred to by the Director of Assistance, it would be
possible to make up for the enormous delays that had built up in the implementation
of some projects. It should be possible to increase capacity.for the implementation
of programmes, particularly if the downward revision in expenditure for 1982 was the
result of a strlct evaluation of that capacity.

28, Her delegat1on was pleased to note the improvements in the presentation of the
High Commissioner's report on assistance activities and the effort at rationalization
which enabled programme development and the gtatus of projects to be followed more
closelys That effort should be sustained and the introductory part of the report
expanded to cover all situations. The last report, for instance, made no reference
to UNHCR assistance activities for the benefit of refugees in Algeria.

29. Her delegation would also heve liked to have further information on the amount
and earmarking of funds received following the International Conference on B
Assistance to Refugees in Africa. In general, it welcomed the downward trend in
estimated expenditure recorded since 1981 but it trusted that that trend was not due
to any disengagement on the part of UNHCR nor to any slackening in assistance but
rather to a relative stabilization of the situation of refugees throughout the world.
It was to be hoped that thoge optimistic forecasts would not be belied by new
situations requiring urgent and increased action by UNHCR. It was, however,
regrettable that.the allocation of resources by region was still far from complying
with the principle of equality of treatment among refugees. = For instance, Africa,
which had 50 per cent of the world's refugees, received only 31 per cent of
resources and of UNHCR's assistance. The lower estimates for 1983 were not
warranted by the repatriation programmes implemented in- Africa since the situation
of refugees there required, on the contrary, increased assistance. While it was
true that UNHCR was asked for emergency assistance less than in the past, it would
be advisable for it to.concentrate its efforts on self-sufficiency projects. It
should therefore be encouraged to pursue that course while taking care to ensure
that the assistance was ecultably shared among the regions and various categorles of
refugees.

0. Her delegation was puzzled by the view that refugees should be brought to a
level of self-sufficiency comparable to that of local populations. If that
principle were adopted, aid to refugees would have to be proportional to the GNP

of the receiving country; the poorer that country was, the less assistance the
refugees would need, unlike refugees received in more developed countries.
According to that theory, UNHCR should also not try to educate refugees in countries
where there was’'a high rate of illiteracy. She would welcome the comments of the
Director of Asgsistance on the matter. '

31+ UNHCR should lay down general criteria based on the principle of equality in
the area of assistance and should introduce an objective, general and stable
information system in order to provide the international community with a more
accurate idea of the situstion of refugees throughout the world.

32. Mr. LANG (Federal Republic of Germany) said that the measures taken by UNHCR

to promote self-sufficiency for refugees were assuming increasing importance and .
often took account of matters affecting the development of host countries. Those
activities, lowever, exceeded the competence of UNHCR, which was rightly endeavouring
to strengthen its co~operation with other United Nations agencies. UNDP, in
particular, should become more closely involved in the aspects of assistance to



A/AC.96/SR.348
page 9

refugees which concerned development. It was also neoessary ‘for the central
development planning authority to become involved at the earliest stage possible where
development aid assumed significance in assistance to refugees. It was important

to avoid any duplloatlon in funds, administration and infrastructure and to integrate
aselstance progects into national development plans., ' :

33, His Government supported the policy of transfcrring supervision of UNHCR projects
which had a definite developmental character to the compe tent organlzatlons.. The,
talks between UNHCR and the World Bank on possible job opportunltles in refugee - areas
of Pakistan were an example of that policy. His Government was also pleased to note
the co-operation between UNHCR and the World Food" Programme and recommended that
studies should be carried out on food~for-work programmes.

34. His delegation welcomed the flexible attitude shown by UNHCR in adjusting its .
action to the changing needs of refugees and was confldent that it would continue to
do 80 in the future.

35.- Mr. ZAFERA (Madagascar) paid tribute to UNHCR for its activities in Asia,
Central America and Africa and for the capacity to adjust which it had shown in
carrying out its. growing responsibilities. The relative stabllLZatlon of the -
refugee 81tuatlon Ain those regions . in no way 1essened the dlver81ty and complexity
of the problems.

36. He had already referred, at the Committee's thirty-second session, to the' .
critical situation of refugees and recéiving countries on the African continent
although, even without that additional burden, those countries would have merited

the international community's special concern. At that time his delegation had.: .
noted a disproportion between the financial resources allocated to assisting tHOSE
refugees and those provided in other regions of the world. The hopes placed in:.the .
International Conference on Assistance to Refugees in Africa had unfortunately beéen
disappointed; but an exhaustive assessment had still not been made and UNHCR should
respond to OAU's request by undertaking a precise evaluation of the rgsults of the
Conference with a view. to.ascertaining whether another one should be ‘organized. The
situation of refugees. in. AleLa was still as tragic as before, despite the efforts of -
the international community and the devotion of the UNHCR staff and, in particular,
of the Division of Assistance. o

37. His delegation noted the improvements in the presentation of the report on UNHCR
assistance activities, but regretted that the report did not always show what stage had
been reached in the implementation of programmes. That applied, in particulax, to the
programme for Sahrawi refugees.which had not been fully implemented in 1981 and which
had not even been started in 1982. . Despite a substantial increase in estimated Jfunds
for 1983, the programme still fell far short of the needs of those refugees, to whose
plight his delegatlon had- already drawn the Committee's attention at its previous
session. :

38. Mr. PEKANE (African National Congress of South Afrlca) said that over the past
year the situation in South Africa had worsened considerably.  The Squth. African
racist regime had 1ncreas1ng7y vioclated international legul norms of .a humenitarian.-
nature such as, for example, the 1949:CGeneva Corvention and the Add1tlona7 -Protocol- of
1967 which accorded prisoner-of-war-status ¢ captured freedom flmhters.. Those
violations had resulted in death sentences being passed on three South,Afrlcan patriots
and members of the ANC., .He appealed.to UNHCR, all other United Nations egen01es and
the international community at large to act together in saving the lives of those
persons, as they had already done on another occasion. The occupation of Namibian and
Angolan territory by the racist Scuth African forces also characterized the regime's
disregard for the principle of national sovereignty and constituted a violation of the
Charter of the United Nations.



A/AC.96/SR. 348
page 10

39. The internal situation had ‘also deteriorated and the racist regime had .
introduced more stringent laws. A bill on the orderly removal and settlement of
persons, the purpose of which was to amend certain settions of the Urban Areas Act,
was currently before Parliament. The bill would, inter,gl a, prohibit the presence
of black people in so-called "white" arezs after certain hourd. Heavy fines would
be imposed on employers who employed persons on conditions that were in breach of
its terms. Tens and thousands of men and women were thus likely to be removed from
their homes and to swell the ranks of displaced persons. Their plight should
therefore be taken lnto consideration since they too were victims of apartheid.
Despite the deteriorating situation the struggle for liberation-had intensified, but
a growing number of patriots had had to seek refuge in neighbouring States because
of police harassment. :

40. .In the present situation, it was essential for UNHCR and the international
community to provide ANC with increased aid. He would be submitting to the

High Commissioner proposals for the further development of the agricultural self-help
projects in Angola, Mozambique and Tanzania. ANC also requested the High Commissioner's
assistance in airlifting the ANC refugees who were in Lesotho.

4. Lastly, he appealed té the High Commissioner and the United Nétions as a whole
to find a way of preventing the military attacks on refugee camps which had claimed
thousands of victims in southern Africa.

42, The CHAIRMAN invited members to consider, section by sectlon and country by
country, the "Report on UNHCR assistance activities in 1981-1982 and proposed
voluntary funds programmes and budget for 1983" (A/AC.96/606).

Section I - Africa

Algeria

43, Mr. SKALLI . (Morocco) said that his delegation had noted the contents of the
report under consideration with great interest. It again referred to a problem

which was of concern to his Government ard to which a final solution had,
unfortunately, yet to be found, namely, the problem of the so-called "refugees" in
the camps in and around Tindouf. Resources were allocated annually for assistance to
those refugees without any thought of promoting durable solutions for them, His
Government had the impression that Morocco's repeated approaches to UNHCR had been
met with a lack of understanding which it was hard to reconcile w1th its mission.

44, In the section on "Sahrawi refugees", it was proposed to appropriate a higher
sum for them than in previous years and to allocate that sum to health, education

and self-sufficiency. Paragraph 9 of the report stated: "Following a recommendation
made by the Executive Committee at its thirty-second session that special attention
should be given to the promotion of durable solutions, over half the proposed amount
will be used for projects leading to self-sufficiency", That was the first time that
the concept of self-sufficiency had been mentioned but the way in which the sentence
was worded suggested that self-sufficiency was a durable solution in itself whereas
it c¢ould be no more than a temporary measure designed to alleviate the sufferings of
persons in camps until such times as a permanent solution had been found. The ideal
solution could only be voluntary repatriation or, failing that, permanent settlement,
in keeping with the spirit, mandate and policy of UNHCR, the decisions of the '
Executive Committee and the deep convictions which the High Commissioner himself was
known to hold.



A/AC.96/SR.348
page 11

45. Why had UNHCR waited seven years before realizing the need to draw up projects
that would lead to self-sufficiency? How much longer would be needed before durable
solutions were found? There was even a question whether self-sufficiency might not
make voluntary repatriation more difficult and more risky. In fact it was not for
the first time that the Committee had dealt with the problem at the

thirty-second session. It had already suggested the proper course to follow with a
view to its solution in 1976, when it had unequivocally linked the granting of
assistance to the implementation of permanent solutions. On 10 October 1976 it had
taken a decision in which it had requested the High Commissioner to continue his
programme and at the same time to undertake discussions with Governments with a view
to the speedy implementation, in accordance with the usual policy of his Office, of
permanent solutions including voluntary repatriation and durable settlement. No
effect had been given to the part of that decision relating to the implementation

of durable solutions, and at its twenty-eighth and twenty-ninth sessions, the
Committee had therefore appealed for its speedy implementation. At its_
thirty-first session the Committee had taken a further decision, in view of the
persistence of the problem, in which it had requested the High Commissioner to
continue or undertake discussions with Governments with a view to the speedy
implementation, in accordance with the usual policy of his Office, of permanent
solutions including voluntary repatriation and durable settlement. Lastly, the
Chairman of the Committee at the thirty-second session had also felt it necessary to
make an important statement reminding members of that decision.

46. None of those efforts had had any practical result. Morocco had always
demonstrated its willingness to contribute in an effective manner to the promotion
of durable solutions. In that connection, his Government had entered into certain
solemn and specific commitments. Pirstly, it was prepared to receive all persons
proved to have originated from the former Spanish Sahara. Secondly, it agreed that
the voluntary repatriation operation should be organized by UNHCR and in accordance
with its normal procedures. Thirdly, it would grant any safeguards UNHCR might
require to ensure that those persons who had opted for free return lived in freedom
and dignity among their people. Fourthly, it undertook to allow UNHCR delegates to
verify at any time that those persons were enjoying in a continuous manner full
liberty and all the economic, social and political rights guaranteed under the
Moroccan Constitution.

47. That position had been explained to the High Commissioner when efforts had been
made to put the Executive Committee's decisions into practice. Following the
decision adopted by the Committee in October 1980, the Moroccan authorities had
notified the High Commissioner that they were prepared to receive senior UNHCR
officials in Morocco in order to carry out a detailed examination of all aspects of
the matter and determine the modalities of and time-table for the implementation of
permanent solutions., A UNHCR mission, headed by Mr. Zollner, the Director of
Assistance, had visited Rabat from 22 to 26 July 1981. The Moroccan inter-ministerial
delegation had on that occasion reaffirmed to its UNHCR partners the commitments it
had entered into before the Executive Committee, namely, that those persons who
agreed voluntarily to return to their homes would enjoy all the guarantees relating
to their security and resettlement and would benefit from all the rights and
prerogatives enshrined in the Constitution. Going still further, Morocco had
undertaken, on humanitarian grounds, to assist with the settlement of persons
originating from the former Spanish Sahara far from its borders in accordance with
the 1969 Convention governing special aspects of the problems of African refugees.
UNHCR's moral authority would be strengthened if it made a public announcement of
the willingness to co-operate with it of those who agreed.



A/AC.96 /SR 348
page:-lz |

48. No mention had oeen made, in the report under con51doratlon or its 1ntroductlon,
o contlnuzng contacts, which had howevcr been announced to the Commlutee .by. the
Director of Aasistonce. ‘at the nrevl')uu sesiion., A reference o, those contacts vould
have enabled members of the CJmMLtte“_,O“aaseopx problen in full knowledge of. the
facts. ' '

49. Over the years and in the various sessions, the figure glven for the number of;
so-called "refugees" in the camps had continued. to rige. Since that figure 4id not
tally with the facts, he once again asked for it to be verified and for UNHCR to carry
out. a census and an authentloatlon of the crigin of those pecple, asg” rQOHQSth by the
oeCfetsry—Generul of the United Nations himself. The truth Snould be msde known publicly
and any amb1gu¢ty re garding that aspect of the ma tter dispelled. In $hat connection,.
he drew dttentlon to an interview granted by Mohawmed Laoxin, e81nent of the so-called
"Polisario" organlzaulon on 15 February 1981 to the Swiss nowspuper "Vlngt-Quatrc Heures".
According ,to Mr, .Lamin, ‘the total population of the future "Sahrawi State" would not
exceed 70,000 peoples whlch was a realistic flgure since it Vorrosponded to the. number
of people who had 1nhpbltcd the territory at the tluQ of colonization.. Since almost
the wvhole of that populatlon lived in the place whore, it had always lived, it was . -
auparent mhat the pumber of persons. originating from. the former Spanish Sahara who:were
in, wamps in, and,ﬁrauno Tindouf was minute by. comparison with the, tctal number of
inhabitants of those camps, most of which came. from various countries in the region and
not from the terrltory formerly administered by Spain.

. s

50, Although a851stancc was needed to all viate. uno sufferlngs of thousands of. natlues
of western Sahara who were in the camps, his Governwent could not allow: the iy
implementation of durable soluticns to oe pootponed indefinitely., Given the W1sdom and
humanitarian feelings of the High Commissicner, his devotion to the -cause of genuine
refugees throughout the world and his .concemn . tﬂ find durable solutions, Morocce. stilly
hoped to see him overcome the 11ff1“ ylities which haﬁ arisen vith a view to the solution
of a problem which, in view of the arr@ngpment ds by the Moroccan Government, it.
shculd be pou81ble to settle effehtlvmlj and OXPG&lthUClY.. : :

51. The CHJI?MAN sald that a uamber of uhO uvorotmrllb wmulu reply to the varlous
points raised at the end of the discussion on the iten.

52 .. . Mre PABFAR (algeria ). said he noted with satisfaction that,. in accordance with the
wish expressed by. ilgerias, assistance to. refugees on‘Algerlaﬂ termltory was now the
gubject of a. sevarate ’hapiul,‘ That was an duprovement which would enable mewbers- to .
follow the implementation of programmes more clo sely. The. -mot that the figure of ¢‘~
165,000 had been inocluded as the number of Sanrani-. Lefugees who had found asylum in-
Algeria was another cause for,satlvfactlon. -In his-view the figure ottrlbutod\to S
Mr, Lamin vas a risprint in..the news paper conoerned and a nought was missing

53, The 1ncreasb in the funds. all~oaued to Sah:mwi r;fugcob .on. Algﬁrlan terrltgry»
attested, tc the 1ntfrnatlonal.ca,u“nlty's growing interest in. those refugees.. Adsum |
of $24850,000. had. been allocated to them, represen lngam‘aubatantlal inopease Oy . ol o
comparison with the previous financial year but corresponding.to.only 2.8 per cent of.
the real needs of.that refugee population for 1983%s ..That was .sbill, for from being.in
accordance with.the. principle uf,burden—sharlng and Algeria expected fyom the .- v
international -community .an affort that matched the. extent of .the.needs, - The Direcitor
of the.Division.of issistance had referred to the difficulties- encountered in carryinge
out certain programmes for the Sahrewi refugees. . I¥jwas torpe.hpped that he would :
overcone those difficulties and.that the programmes ; -wauld bgtcarrled out within the
periods stipulated.

Lt
it



A/AC.96/SR. 348
page 13

54. It was true that the task of UNHCR was to promote durable solutions, and-
voluntary repatriation, where the conditions were met, certainly provided the most
appropriate solution. But it was obvious that it could be envisaged only when the
causes which were at the origin of the situation had disappeared. Those causes were
well known. Repatriation had to be combined with an over-all political solution

to the problem. - Algeria wanted voluntary repatriation to become a reality, but
only when the right to-self-determination and independence had been . exerc1sed

in accordance with the relevant resolutions of the Organlzaxlon of Afrlcan Unity
(0AU) and the United Nations.

CONSIDERATTON OF DRAPT DECTSTON ON THE GENERAL DEBATE (HCR/EC/XXXIII/CRP 2)

55. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to consider the draft deols1on on the
general debate (HCR/EC/XXXIII/CRP 2) oaragraph by paragraph.

Paragraph (a)

56. Mr. ZAHIRNIA (Iran) proposed that. the words "cruel ... attacks", in the third
line, should be replaced by "cruel events"; that the rest of the paragraph should
be deleted; and that a new paragraph should be added to read: "Vigorously
condemned the inhuman attacks on refugee camps and the massacre of thousands of
innocent Palestinian refugees -~ women, -children and old people ~ and of Lebanese
citizens,"

57. Mr. TAFFAR (Algeria) supported the Iranian proposal but said that, in his view,
condemnation was out of place alongside congratulations addressed to members of the
Bureau,

58. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the new paragraph should be plaoed further on,
between existing paragraphs (d) and (e).

59. 1t was so decided,

60. Paragraph (a), as amended, was adopted.

Paragraph (b)

6l. Paragraph (b) was adopted.

Paragi‘aph (c)

62. TFollowing an exchange of views in vhich Mr. TRAUTTMANSDORFF gAustria),
Mr. TAFFAR (Algeria), Mr. WILLIAMSON (United Kingdom), Mr. LEJRI (Tunisia,
Rapporteur), Mr. IVRAKIS (Greece) and Mr. MATIKO (United Republic of Tanzanla)took
part, the CHATRMAN suggested that, in the first line of the French text, the words
"dans le monde" should be added after "le nombre de réfugidés".

63. The proposal was adopted without opposition.

64. Paragraph (o), as amended, was adopted.




A/AC.96/SR.348 -
page 14 o

Paragraph (d)

65. Paragraph (d),was adopted.

Paragraph (e)

66. Mr. DESY (Belgium), referring to the French text, said he wondered whether it
was in fact correct, from the legal point of view, to refer to refugees and displaced
persons "relevant du mandat du Haut Commissariat". It would be better to use the
phrase "dont s'occupe le Haut Commissariat" which would also be closer to the
corresponding words in English "of concern to the Office".

67. The CHAIRMAN said that the Secretariat suggested the phrase "relevant de la
compétence du Haut Commigsariat'. '

68. Mr. DESY (Belgium) said that that wording was acceptable to him.

69. Mr. MATIKO (Tanzania) proposed that the word "displaced™ should be deleted
since the High Commissioner's terms of reference did not authorize him to deal w1th
persons dlsplaced in their own country.

T0. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the English text should remain unchanged and that,
in the French text, the words "du mandat" should be replaced by the words "de de la

compétence'.
TL.. Paragraph (e), as amended, was adopted,

Paragraph (f)

72. Paragraph (f) was adopted.

Paragraph (g)

73. Paragraph (g) was adopted.:

Paragraph (h)

74, Paragraph (h) was adopted.

5. The CHATRMAN said that the new paragraph proposed by the Iranian representative
and already adopted should be inserted after paragraph (h).

76+ Mr. MATIKO (Tanzania) sald that, in his v1ew, it would be better to place the
new paragraph after paragraph (i).

17 Mr. Matiko‘s‘proposal wasg accepted.

Paragraph (i)

78. Paragraph (i) was adopted.




A/AC.96/SR.348
page 15

Former paragraph (j)

79. Former paragraph (j) was adopted.

Former paragraph (k)

80. Former paragraph (k) was adopted.

Former paragraph (1)

8l. lMr. TRAUTTMANSDORFF (Austria) proposed that the word "more", in the last line,
should be deleted.

82, Former paragraph (1), as amended, was adopted.

Former paragraph (m)

83. Mr. BIELER (Switzerland) asked whether, for the sake of clarity, the number of
the resolutions and decisions referred to could not be shown in brackets.

84. Mr. DEVLIN (Canada), supporting that proposal, suggested that if the list of
the resolutions and decisions in question was too long it could be given in a
foot-note.

85. Mr, MATIKO (Tanzania) said that in his view the word "relevant" was sufficient.

86. Mr. COPIN (France) said that the proposals of the Swiss and Canadian
representatives were very sound. The word "relevant" was too vague.

87. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the Bxecutive Committee should adopt the text
with the amendment proposed by the Swiss representative,

88. Former paragraph (m), as amended, was adopted.

Former paragraph (n)

89. Former paragraph (n) was adopted.

Former paragraph (o)

90. Former paragraph (o) was adopted.

Former paragraph (p)

91. Mr. TRAUTTMANSDORFF (Austria) proposed that, for the same reasons as applied
in the case of paragraph (c), the end of the senteace should be reworded to read:
"in many regions, and in particular in Asia, Africa and Central Americal.,

92. Mr. ZAHIRNIA (Iran) asked whether ﬁaragraphs (p) and (c) could not be combined.

93« The CHAIRMAN said that the Rapporteur would loock into the matter. He proposed
that the Committee should adopt paragraph (p) with the amendment submitted by the
Austrian representative.

94. Former paragraph (p), as amended, was adopted.




A/AC .96/SR. 348
page 16

Former paragraph (q)

95. Pormer paragraph (q) was adopted.

Former paragraph (r)

96, TFormer paragraph (r) was adopted.

Former paragraph (s)

97. Former paragraph (s) was adopted.

98. The draft decision, as amended, was adopted.

p.md

The meeting rose at 6,10



